
 
 
 

REGULAR PIQUA CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 16, 2010 

7:30 P.M. 
201 WEST WATER STREET 

PIQUA, OHIO   45356 
 
 

 CALL TO ORDER 
 
 ROLL CALL 
 
 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

 
  REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
 

 
AA..  CCOONNSSEENNTT  AAGGEENNDDAA  

 
a. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Approval of the minutes from the November 2, 2010 Regular City Commission Meeting  
 

BB..  OOLLDD  BBUUSSIINNEESSSS  
  

a. ORD. NO. 28-10 (3rd Reading) 
 An Ordinance to authorize the annexation of land owned by the City of Piqua Municipal 

Corporation 
 

                 b. ORD. NO. 29-10  (2nd Reading)  
An Ordinance to repeal Section 94.25 of the Piqua Municipal Code 
 

                 c. ORD. NO. 30-10 (2nd Reading) 
 An Ordinance to repeal Section 32.035 and 32.036 of the Piqua Municipal Code 
 
     d. ORD. NO. 31-10-Amended (2nd Reading) 

  An Ordinance to modify Appendix Table A, Chapter 150 Building Regulations of the  
Piqua Code 

 
     e. ORD. NO. 32-10   (2nd Reading) 

  An Ordinance providing for the issuance and sale of $55,953.49 of bonds in anticipation 
  of the collection of special assessments to pay costs of construction in the year 2009,  
  sidewalks, curbs and gutters on Riverside Drive (Phase I) with the necessary 
  appurtenances thereto 
 

CC..  NNEEWW  BBUUSSIINNEESSSS  
  

a. ORD. NO. 33-10 (1st Reading) 
  An Ordinance to make appropriations for the City of Piqua, Ohio for the year 2011 
 
 
 
 



 2

 
 
       b. ORD. NO. 34-10 (1st Reading) 
  An Ordinance repealing Schedule A-1 of Chapter 33 of the Piqua Code and adopting a new  
  Schedule A-1 of Chapter 33 of the Piqua Code, relating to wages of certain Municipal  
  Employees 
 
      c. RES. NO. R-133-10  

A Resolution awarding a contract for the purchase of a refuse packer for the Sanitation 
Department 

 
d. RES. NO. R-134-10 

A Resolution authorizing a purchase order to Breathing Air Systems, Inc. to purchase a  
breathing air supply trailer for the Fire Department 
 

e. RES. NO. R-135-10 
A Resolution authorizing the execution of a loan agreement with Quint Creative Group, 
LLC, in the amount of $45,000 

 
        f. RES. NO. R-136-10 

  A Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute an agreement with the Trustees 
 of Washington Township to furnish Emergency Ambulance Service and Fire Protection 
 
       g. RES. NO. R-137-10 
  A Resolution amending the purchase order to Barrett Paving Materials, Inc. as the primary 
 Supplier, and Valley Asphalt Corporation as the secondary supplier of hot mix for the 2010  
 Street and Alley Maintenance program 
 

h. RES. NO. R-138-10 
A Resolution authorizing the City Manager to contract with the Miami County Public  
Defender Commission 

  
DD..  AADDJJOOUURRNNMMEENNTT  TTOO  EEXXEECCUUTTIIVVEE  SSEESSSSIIOONN  

a. To consider pending or imminent litigation 
 

  
EE..      AADDJJOOUURRNNMMEENNTT  

 
 

  



 1

                                                                                                                                                                                       
MINUTES 

PIQUA CITY COMMISSION 
Tuesday November 2, 2010 

7:30 P.M. 
 

Piqua City Commission met at 7:30 P.M. in the Municipal Government Complex Commission 
Chambers located at 201 W. Water Street. Mayor Fess called the meeting to order.  Also present were 
Commissioners Vogt, Martin, Terry, and Wilson.  Absent: None. 
 

PIQUA HEALTH BOARD 
 
Consent Agenda 
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
Approval of the minutes from the September 21, 2009 Piqua Health Board Meeting 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that the minutes of the September 
21, 2009 Piqua Health Board Meeting be approved. Voice vote, Aye: Wilson, Fess, Martin, Terry, and 
Vogt. Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
RES. NO. H-299 (PUBLIC HEARING) 
 
A Resolution modifying certain fees for services 
 
Health and Sanitation Director Amy Welker explained each Health Department is required to do a cost 
analysis each year and are only permitted to recoup certain costs. These fee charges include the food 
program, the swimming pool program, the tattoo program, and the manufactured home park program. 
 
For many years, the City of Piqua did not choose to adjust fees for the environmental programs, and 
now are below the State portion of the fee and far below industry standards when compared to other 
jurisdictions.  The result has been that the General Fund dollars support the operation of these 
programs. 
 
Commissioner Wilson stated that it would be more costly to turn this over to Miami County than to 
continue to operate our own Health Department. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, that the Resolution No. H-299 be 
approved. Voice vote, Aye: Wilson, Fess, Martin, Terry, and Vogt. Nay: None. Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. H-299 adopted. 
 
Adjournment  
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Terry, to adjourn from the Piqua Health 
Board Meeting. Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Wilson, Terry, Fess, and Vogt. Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 

          _____________________________ 
                 LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 

PASSED: ______________________ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________ 

         REBECCA J. COOL 
     CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 2

REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
 
 

Consent Agenda 
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
Approval of the minutes from the October 19, 2010 Regular Piqua City Commission meeting 
 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, that the minutes of the October 
19, 2010 Regular Piqua City Commission meeting be approved. Voice vote, Aye: Wilson, Fess, Martin, 
Terry, and Vogt. Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
ORD. NO. 28-10 (2nd Reading) 
 
An Ordinance to authorize the annexation of land owned by the City of Piqua Municipal Corporation 
 
City Manager Enderle stated this is the second reading for Ordinance No. 28-10. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Ordinance No. 28-10. 
 
Ordinance No. 28-10 was given a Second Reading. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
ORD. NO. 29-10 (1ST Reading) 
 
An Ordinance to repeal Section 94.25 of the Piqua Municipal Code 
 
City Manager Enderle stated this is a housekeeping item.  
 
Health and Sanitation Director Amy Welker explained this code section has not been updated recently 
and the state has adopted extensive legislation that governs the topic of swimming pools.  The Health 
Department does license and inspect public swimming pools, but uses the Ohio Revised Code. The 
Ohio Code is reviewed and update periodically and is more current and accurate. The items listed in 
the Piqua Code are covered under the Ohio Revised Code Chapter 3749, so there is no need for this 
language to remain in the Piqua Code. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Ordinance No. 29-10 
 
Ordinance No. 29-10 was given a first reading. 
 
ORD. NO. 30-10 (1ST Reading) 
 
An Ordinance to repeal Section 32.035 and 32.036 of the Piqua Municipal Code 
 
City Manager Enderle stated this is also a housekeeping item. The Health Department uses the Ohio 
Code and the code is reviewed and update periodically and is more current and accurate. The items 
listed in the Piqua Code are covered under the Ohio Uniform Food Safety Code, so there is no need 
for this language to remain in the Piqua Code. 
 
 



 3

Commissioner Martin asked if there is anything in the Code Book referencing the code section being  
removed and the State Code being followed. 
 
Law Director Wall explained if the information is not listed in the Piqua Code than the State Code 
applies.  After the code section is repealed it no longer listed in the Piqua Code. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Ordinance No. 30-10 
 
Ordinance No. 30-10 was given a first reading. 
 
ORD. NO. 31-10 (1st Reading) 
 
An Ordinance to modify Appendix Table A, Chapter 150 Building Regulations of the Piqua Code 
 
City Manager Enderle stated this is a companion to the Health Resolution to modify the fees for 
environmental health programs.   The current fees have been in effect since 2006, and the new fee 
adjustments are fair. This proposal is a balance between recouping costs and providing a fair permit 
fee to vendors, said City Manager Enderle. 
 
Commissioner Martin inquired as to possibly raising the Plan Review Commercial Fee from $25 
minimum to $50 minimum.  There was discussion on raising the fee for Commercial accounts. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Vogt, to amend Ordinance No. 31-10 to 
raise the Plan Review Minimum Fee for a Commercial Permit from $25.00 to $50.00. Voice vote: Aye: 
Vogt, Martin, Terry, Fess, and Wilson. Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously. Ordinance No. 31-10 
was amended. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Ordinance No. 31-10 
 
Amended Ordinance No. 31-10 was given a first reading, as amended. 
 
 
ORD. NO. 32-10 (1ST Reading) 
 
An Ordinance providing for the issuance and sale of $55,953.49 of bonds in anticipation of the 
collection of special assessments to pay costs of construction in the year 2009, sidewalks, curbs and 
gutters on Riverside Drive (Phase 1) with the necessary appurtenances thereto 
 
Finance Director Cynthia Holtzapple stated the Street Construction Fund 103 originally paid for the 
Riverside Drive Construction Project and the property owners were invoiced on January 15, 2010 with 
invoices due on April 30, 2010. The City Commission approved Resolution No. R-24-10 on September 
7, 2010 to assess the unpaid reconstruction costs to the property owners’ tax duplicate for five or ten 
years based on the property owners choice.  By issuing and selling these bonds the City will be able to 
restore the dollars to the Street Reconstruction Fund 103 for the reconstruction costs and not have to 
wait ten years. The original project cost is $120,290.02 and the city collected $54,155.93 and the 
remaining amount of $55,953.49 was assessed to the public by the county, and the complete bond 
total is $55,953.49. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Ordinance No. 32-10 
 
Ordinance No. 32-10 was given a first reading. 
 



 4

RES. NO. R-130-10 
 
A Resolution awarding a contract for the purchase of a bobcat skid-steer loader for the Street 
Department 
 
City Manager Enderle stated this Resolution replaces the H-031 Giehl 5635 Deluxe Skid Loader 
purchased in 1999. The Street Department has spent several thousand dollars over the past few years 
on maintenance and repairs, and it has become a safety issue and can no longer be used. 
 
Commissioner Martin inquired about the equipment and its use.  Assistant Street Superintendent Don 
Seeberger explained how the equipment is utilized, and need for it. 
  
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-130-10. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-130-10 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye: Wilson, Vogt, Martin, Terry, and Fess. Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-130-10 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-131-10 
 
A Resolution awarding a contract to TI Training Corp, in an amount not to exceed $42,000 for a new 
firearms simulation system 
 
City Manager Enderle stated this Resolution awards a contract to TI Training Corp. for a new firearms 
simulation system for the Police Department in an amount not to exceed $42,000.   
 
Police Chief Jamison stated in April of 2009, the Police Department received a grant for $32,000 with 
an $11,800 cash match, and then the department received a significant criminal forfeiture due to 
assistance provided to Miami, Darke, Shelby, and Champaign Counties.  A request for proposals was 
solicited and published and a firearms simulation system was selected from Ti Training Corporation.  
This project will place a firearms simulation system owned by the City of Piqua at Edison State College 
to be used at the convenience of the police department and the Edison Police Academy at no charge.  
Revenue will be collected from other police agencies by the Edison staff to be used for future 
maintenance and upgrades to the system, said Police Chief Jamison. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-131-10. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, that Resolution No. R-131-10 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye:  Wilson, Vogt, Martin, Terry, and Fess. Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess declared Resolution No. R-131-10 adopted.  
 
RES. NO. 132-10 
 
A Resolution requesting preliminary legislation for the painting of Bridge Structure 5500184 MIA IR 
15.74 
 
City Manager Enderle stated this would compliment the improvements that are currently underway on 
the US 36 (E. Ash Street) Bridge redecking project with no costs to the city.   
 
City Engineer Amy Havenar explained the bridge will be painted a light beige/tan color, which will be 
the same color as the concrete sealer being applied to the bridge, and a black PVC coated fence will 
also be installed.  The proposed color selection for the bridge was also presented to the City of Piqua 
Planning Commission for their approval at their September 2010 meeting, said Ms. Havenar. 
 



 5

Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-132-10 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-132-10 be 
adopted. Voice vote, Aye: Fess, Wilson, Vogt, Martin, and Terry. Nay: None. Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-132-10 adopted. 
 
OTHER 
 
Economic Development Update – Mr. Bill Murphy 
 
Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Director Bill Murphy gave a brief update on Economic 
Development in the City of Piqua.  Mr. Murphy explained the interest and development opportunities 
that have been explored this year so far.  The State of Ohio has sent about twenty-five leads to the 
City of Piqua this year so far, but a lot of them have been long term leads, stated Mr. Murphy.   
 
Mayor Fess stated she was very happy that Trupointe chose Piqua to locate in, citing they have a total 
of 500 employees in Indiana and Ohio.  Mayor Fess also asked Mr. Murphy how Piqua is promoted.  
Mr. Murphy explained how they promote Piqua, and stated that Economic Development is a team 
sport, taking a lot of various ideas and concepts and putting them altogether. Businesses want to hear 
about all the good things happening in the city where they live, work and play. 
 
Mayor Fess thanked Mr. Murphy for his update, and stated he is working very hard to promote the City 
of Piqua on a daily basis 
 
Monthly Reports – September 2010 
 
Monthly Reports for September 2010 were accepted. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Scott Fine, North Street came forward and voiced his concern over a problem he was having with the 
Miami County Court System and the City of Piqua on a legal matter concerning a Property 
Maintenance Violation he received.  He continued by stating the City is wasting taxpayer’s money by 
taking him to court again. 
 
Law Director Wall explained the situation, and the City of Piqua’s part in the Property Maintenance 
Violation.  Mr. Fine further stated he would like an answer at the next City Commission meeting on his 
questions.   Mayor Fess stated she would look into his concerns and determine if there is a problem. 
 
Commissioner Wilson stated he recently attend the Piqua Education Foundation Banquet where 
Sandy Cox was honored as Teacher of the Year.  The Foundation has given out 147 Scholarships to 
Piqua students in the past four years totaling over $203,000. This is just one of many positive things 
happening in the City of Piqua, said Commissioner Wilson. 
 
Commissioner Martin inquired as to the status of the updates to the Grow Piqua Now Website, and 
asked about the progress on the Shawnee Pump Station. 
 
Mr. Murphy stated the new Grow Piqua Now website is set to be launched on December 1, 2010. City 
Engineer Amy Havenar gave a brief update on the progress of the Shawnee Pump Station. 
 
Mayor Fess commented on how nice Commercial Street is looking, stating it is a great improvement to 
the area. 
 
 
 
 



 6

 
 
Adjournment  
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, to adjourn from the Regular Piqua 
City Commission Meeting at 8:45 P.M. Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Wilson, Terry, Fess, and Vogt. Nay: 
None.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
 
 

          _____________________________ 
                 LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 

PASSED: ______________________ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________ 

         REBECCA J. COOL 
     CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



B. OLD BUSINESS 
             November 11, 2010 
 

 Ord. No. 28-10  (3rd Reading)   
 Ord. No. 29-10  (2nd Reading) 
 Ord. No. 30-10  (2nd Reading) 
 Ord. No. 31-10  (2nd Reading)  
 Ord. No. 32-10  (2nd Reading) 

  





















































C.     NEW BUSINESS 
          November 11, 2010 
 

 Ord. No. 33-10 (1st Reading) 
 Ord. No. 34-10 (1st Reading) 
 Res. No. R-133-10 
 Res. No. R-134-10 
 Res. No. R-135-10 
 Res. No. R-136-10 
 Res. No. R-137-10 
 Res. No. R-138-10 

 



















 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 34-10 
 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING SCHEDULE A-1 OF 
CHAPTER 33 OF THE PIQUA CODE AND ADOPTING 
A NEW SCHEDULE A-1 OF CHAPTER 33 OF THE PIQUA 
CODE, RELATING TO WAGES OF CERTAIN MUNICIPAL 
EMPLOYEES 

 
 

 BE IT ORDAINED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, 
the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
  
 SEC.  1: Schedule A-1 of Chapter 33 of the Piqua Code, as adopted by 
Ordinance No. 21-10, is hereby repealed; and 
 
 SEC.  2: Schedule A-1 of Chapter 33 of the Piqua Code (appended hereto 
as Exhibit “E”) is hereby adopted; 
 
 SEC. 3: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 

 
 
 
       ___________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



1 

   
  

 

CITY COMMISSION MEETING REPORT 
 

    For the Regular Meeting of November 16, 2010 
 

Date:  November 11, 2010 
 

TO:  Fred Enderle, City Manager 
 
FROM: Elaine G. Barton, Human Resources Director  
  
SUBJECT: Revise Schedule A-1 (Temporary, Seasonal, and Part-time Employees) 
 
PURPOSE:   

 
1. Adopt the ordinance revising Chapter 33- Schedule A-1 increasing the minimum wage 

rate from $7.30 per hour to $7.40 per hour. 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Adopt Ordinance No. 34-10 to increase the wages of certain temporary, seasonal, and part-
time employees. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
On January 1, 2011, the minimum wage rate in the State of Ohio will be increased from $7.30 
per hour to $7.40 per hour.   There are several positions included on Schedule A-1 that are 
currently at $7.30 per hour.   Passage of this ordinance will put the City in compliance with 
state law. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
 
1) Adopt Ordinance No. 34-10 increasing the wage rates of certain temporary, seasonal, and 

part-time employees to the minimum wage rate to take effect on January 1, 2011. 
2) Do not adopt the Ordinance and be out of compliance with state law.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
The increase to the minimum wage rate will amount to a ten cent per hour increase for 
approximately fourteen positions.   The majority of these positions will not be filled in the 
2011 budget.    
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
As the majority of the positions affected will not be filled in 2011, the increase in the wage 
rate will be minimal.   However, it has been accounted for in the 20ll calendar year budget. 
 
 
 
 



 Page 2 
 

 
Schedule A-1 
November 16, 2010 
 
 
COMMUNITY IMPACT: 
N/A 
   
CONFORMITY TO CITY PLANS & POLICIES: 
The City will be in compliance with the State of Ohio minimum wage rate requirement. 
 
 
 
 
 



Schedule A-1 Effective January 1, 2011
CLASSIFICATION/ TITLE HOURLY RATE
CLERK TYPIST (CO-OP STUDENT) 7.40
CITY CLERK* 7.40
CLERK TYPIST A 7.40
CLERK TYPIST B 7.42
RECORDS & DATA ENTRY CLERK 7.52
ACCOUNT CLERK* 9.94
SECRETARY I* 10.24
SECRETARY II* 11.82
ADMINISTRATIVE SECRETARY* 15.52
ENGINEERING CO-OP I (STUDENT) 9.48
ENGINEERING CO-OP II (STUDENT) 10.33
ENGINEERING CO-OP III (STUDENT) 11.13
ENGINEERING CO-OP IV (STUDENT) 11.97
PLANNING TECHNICIAN 16.48
INTERNS 7.40 to 12.36
PARKING CONTROL OFFICER 7.92
ANIMAL CONTROL OFFICER 7.40
POWER DISTRIBUTION STOREKEEPER 15.45
PLUMBING INSPECTOR 19.10
CONSTRUCTION INSPECTOR 19.10
PUBLIC HEALTH NURSE 19.10
STREET SWEEPER 10.00
LABORER A 7.42
LABORER B 8.26
LABORER C 9.18
CUSTODIAN 7.40
REFUSE COLLECTOR 7.40
MAINTENANCE WORKER 7.40
STREET DEPT. MAINTENANCE SUPV. 9.91
SEASONAL GOLF COURSE MAINT. LABORER A 7.42 plus free golf**
SEASONAL GOLF COURSE MAINT. LABORER B 8.26 plus free golf**
SEASONAL GOLF COURSE MAINT. LABORER C 9.18 plus free golf**
SUMMER GOLF COURSE MAINT. LABORER A 7.40 plus free golf**
SUMMER GOLF COURSE MAINT. LABORER B 7.40 plus free golf**
SUMMER GOLF COURSE MAINT. LABORER C 7.45 plus free golf**
GOLF COURSE CLUBHOUSE ATTENDANT 7.42 plus free golf**
CART/RANGE ATTENDANT 7.40 plus free golf**
FOOD SERVICE ATTENDANT (GOLF) 7.40 plus free golf**
LIFEGUARD A 7.40
LIFEGUARD B 7.40
LIFEGUARD C 7.45
TICKET WINDOW ATTENDANT A 7.40
TICKET WINDOW ATTENDANT B 7.40
HEAD TICKET WINDOW ATTEND. A 7.45
HEAD TICKET WINDOW ATTEND. B 7.83
RECREATION LEADER 7.79
RECREATION ASSISTANT 7.40
SPORTS INSTRUCTOR 8.53 to 17.06
DANCE/FITNESS INSTRUCTOR 8.53 to 17.06
POOL MANAGER 524.45 WEEKLY RATE
ASSISTANT POOL MANAGER A 362.35 WEEKLY RATE
ASSISTANT POOL MANAGER B 379.65 WEEKLY RATE
HEAD LIFE GUARD A 312.91 WEEKLY RATE
HEAD LIFE GUARD B 330.22 WEEKLY RATE
ASSISTANT LAW DIRECTOR 823.40 WEEKLY RATE
*These are confidential employees and are not in any bargaining unit.
**certain restrictions do apply - must work a minimum of 20 hours per week





RESOLUTION NO. R-133-10 
 

A RESOLUTION AWARDING A CONTRACT FOR 
THE PURCHASE OF A REFUSE PACKER FOR THE 

SANITATION DEPARTMENT 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the present operations of the City require the purchase of a 
Refuse Packer; and 
 
 WHEREAS, bids were received after advertisement for a refuse packer, 
resulting in the lowest, responsible bid from Waste Removal Equipment. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 
 

SEC. 1: A contract for the purchase of a Refuse Packer from Waste 
Removal Equipment is hereby approved as the lowest, responsible bidder and the 
City Manager is hereby authorized to execute a contract with said bidder pursuant to 
contract specifications.  
 
 SEC. 2: The Finance Director is hereby authorized to draw her 
warrants on the appropriate account of the City treasury in payment according to 
contract terms, not exceeding a total of $43,902. 
 
 SEC. 3: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
          LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

 

CITY COMMISSION MEETING REPORT 
 

For the Regular Meeting of November 16, 2010 

 

 
TO:  Fred Enderle, City Manager 
 
FROM: Amy Welker, Health & Sanitation Director 
 
SUBJECT: Sanitation Department packer replacement 
 
 
PURPOSE:  To award a bid for the replacement of the packer component on refuse truck T-33. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt the resolution awarding the contract to Waste Removal 
Equipment as the lowest and best bidder. 
 
BACKGROUND:  The Sanitation Department had originally budgeted $119,000 to purchase a 
new refuse truck and packer in 2010.  In light of the current economic conditions, the purchase 
was delayed until mid-year.  In an effort to further save on capital expenditures it was decided to 
explore the option of replacing a packer body on T-33 instead of replacing an entire truck.  The 
capital expenditure was reduced to an estimated $70,000 as a result. 
 
T-33 was purchased in 2004 with a Loadmaster packer unit.  This type of packer unit was never 
used by the city before.  Over the years, this particular packer has experienced multiple problems 
and does not meet the needs of the department in terms of capacity capabilities.  A new packer 
unit would increase the efficiency of the department by meeting the high demands for durability 
and increased capacity.   
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
 1.  Adopt the Resolution awarding the contract. 
 2.  Do not adopt the Resolution. 
 3.  Provide direction to staff to proceed in another manner. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
The entire operation of the Sanitation department is dependent on the truck fleet.  The 
department staff has done a great job in maintaining the truck fleet by being conscientious of 
maintenance schedules and doing minor repairs in house.  The department has delayed the 
purchase of new trucks several times over the last five years in an effort to cut expenses.  This 
request is yet another cost savings plan the department wishes to implement.  While the 
department will need to replace trucks in the future, this expenditure will delay a replacement at 
this time. 
 



 

The packer to be replaced has had maintenance problems and does not perform to the level of the 
other vehicles in the fleet.  The truck itself, meaning the cab and chassis, has performed 
adequately and has the ability to continue to function meeting our needs for many years.  By 
replacing this packer unit, the entire fleet will be operating at full capacity enabling the staff to 
perform efficiently. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
The city received five bids from four different companies.  The lowest and best bid that would 
meet our needs was determined to be the bid from Waste Removal Equipment for a New Way 
Cobra 20 packer at a cost of $43,902.  This was a very competitive bid process with the next 
lowest bid coming in at $45,346.   
 
The original 2010 capital budget for this project was $119,000 for a complete truck replacement.  
That estimate was lowered to $70,000 to only replace this packer unit.  The favorable bid price 
will result in an additional savings of $26,098 for the department. 
 
COMMUNITY IMPACT: 
The community will continue to receive outstanding service from the Sanitation department.  
The department will operate more efficiently as a result of this purchase. 
 
CONFORMITY TO CITY PLANS & POLICIES: 
This purchase is in line with the Capital Improvement Plan for the Sanitation Department.  This 
purchase also meets the city’s goal to be fiscally responsible. 



S
an

ita
tio

n 
D

ep
t. 

P
ac

ke
r B

od
y 

IF
B

 #
 1

02
8

B
id

 O
pe

ni
ng

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
5,

 2
01

0 
at

 2
:0

0 
p.

m
.

W
as

te
 R

em
ov

al
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t
U

C
S

 W
as

te
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t C
o.

W
as

te
 R

em
ov

al
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t
M

cN
ei

lu
s 

Tr
uc

k
K

an
n 

M
an

uf
ac

tu
rin

g 
C

or
p

M
an

tu
a,

 O
H

 
D

ay
to

n,
 O

H
M

an
tu

a,
 O

H
 

Fa
irf

ie
ld

, O
H

 
G

ut
te

nb
er

g,
 IA

P
ac

ke
r B

od
y 

M
ak

e
N

ew
 W

ay
E

-Z
 P

ac
k 

N
ew

 W
ay

M
cN

ei
lu

s
K

an
n

P
ac

ke
r B

od
y 

M
od

el
C

ob
ra

 2
0

G
-3

00
C

ob
ra

 2
5

20
 y

ar
d 

re
ar

 lo
ad

er
P

ac
km

as
te

r

To
ta

l P
ric

e
43

,9
02

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
45

,3
46

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

45
,9

84
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
46

,6
91

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
50

,5
32

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

D
el

iv
er

y 
tim

e
60

-9
0 

da
ys

45
-6

0 
da

ys
60

-9
0 

da
ys

90
 d

ay
s

60
 d

ay
s



RESOLUTION NO. R–134-10 
 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A PURCHASE ORDER TO 

BREATHING AIR SYSTEMS, INC. TO PURCHASE A 
BREATHING AIR SUPPLY TRAILER FOR THE FIRE 

DEPARTMENT 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the Piqua Fire Department desires to purchase a breathing air supply trailer; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Piqua provided for the purchase in the 2010 budget appropriations, 
but with the order being placed late in the year, the trailer will not be received until 2011.  Those 
funds will be reappropriated into the 2011 budget; 
 
 WHEREAS, on April 30, 2010, the City of Piqua was awarded grant funding from the AFG, 
Assistance to Firefighters Grant, for purchasing a breathing air supply trailer in accordance with the 
grant application; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the above described grant allocates funds for the purchase of a breathing air 
supply trailer for the Piqua Fire Department; 
 
 WHEREAS, after proper advertisement, bids were opened resulting in the tabulation of bids 
as listed in Exhibit “A” attached hereto;   
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami 
County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: A purchase order is hereby authorized to Breathing Air Systems, Inc. for the 
purchase of a breathing air supply trailer pursuant to the bid specifications; 
 
 SEC. 2: The Finance Director is hereby authorized to draw her warrants from time to 
time on the appropriate account of the city treasury in payment according to contract terms, not 
exceeding a total of $42,800.00; 
 
 SEC. 3: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest 
period allowed by law. 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



1 

   
  

 

CITY COMMISSION MEETING REPORT 
 

    For the Regular Meeting of November 16, 2010  
 

   
TO:  Fred Enderle, City Manager 
 
FROM: Fire Chief Mike Rindler 
  
SUBJECT: Design & Construction of a Breathing Air Supply Trailer. 
 
 
PURPOSE:   
Approve the Resolution No. R-134-10 authorizing a contract for the design and construction 
of a breathing air supply trailer. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
I am requesting approval of Resolution No. R-134-10 authorizing a contract for the design and 
construction of the breathing air supply trailer by Breathing Air systems, Reynoldsburg, Ohio. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Our staff obtained a FEMA grant in the amount of $42,800. for the design and construction of 
a breathing air supply trailer.  The Fire Department’s current trailer is 25 years old.  We expect 
the delivery date to be by March 31, 2011.  This trailer system will help to ensure the safe 
refilling of our high pressure SCBA bottles in the field. 
  
ALTERNATIVES: 
1) Approve Resolution No. R-134-10  authorizing a contract for the design and construction 

breathing air supply trailer. 
2) Do not approve the Resolution and lose out on the grant funds available to us while also 

jeopardizing the opportunity to increase our safety while filling high pressure SCBA 
bottles in the field. 

 
DISCUSSION: 
1)  This alternative will allow for us to expand our safety options for the employees and 
update equipment with a fully enclosed and fully lighted environment. 
2)   The alternative for not acquiring this piece of equipment would be using 25 year old 
equipment that is not fully enclosed to guard against cylinder failure. Firefighters would also 
be without adequate night operation lighting. 

  
 
 
 



 Page 2 
 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
1)  The FEMA grant calls for a 10% match of City funds.  We have budgeted $4,280.00 for 
this expense.   
2)  The City would lose out on a $42,800.00 benefit if we choose to go with this alternative. 
 
COMMUNITY IMPACT: 
The Community would benefit by obtaining an advanced piece of equipment providing a safer 
operating environment to extend the ability of prolonged firefighting operations. 
 
CONFORMITY TO CITY PLANS & POLICIES: 
The acquisition of the air trailer would allow for field operations to be conducted for a 
multitude of emergency situations that would require the use of SCBA’s ( Self Contained 
Breathing Apparatus ).  
 
  
 
 
 
 
 



IF
B

 #
 1

02
6 

B
re

at
hi

ng
 A

ir 
S

up
pl

y 
Tr

ai
le

r
B

id
 o

pe
ni

ng
 O

ct
ob

er
 2

2,
 2

01
0 

at
 2

:0
0 

p.
m

. B
re

at
hi

ng
 A

ir 
S

ys
te

m
s

B
re

at
hi

ng
 A

ir 
S

ys
te

m
s

B
re

at
hi

ng
 A

ir 
S

ys
te

m
s

M
id

w
ay

 T
ra

ile
r S

al
es

R
ey

no
ld

sb
ur

g,
 O

H
 

R
ey

no
ld

sb
ur

g,
 O

H
 

R
ey

no
ld

sb
ur

g,
 O

H
 

S
t. 

M
ar

y'
s,

 O
H

1.
 C

as
ca

de
13

,6
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
2.

 F
ill

 S
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

C
on

tro
l P

an
el

6,
60

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3.
 T

ra
ile

r
10

,9
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
5,

15
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

To
ta

l c
os

t o
f t

ra
ile

r
31

,1
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  

4.
 O

pt
io

ns
H

ig
h 

P
re

ss
ur

e 
B

oo
st

er
 P

um
p

7,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

S
C

B
A

 C
yl

in
de

r s
to

ra
ge

 &
 tr

an
sf

er
 ra

ck
3,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
H

on
da

 E
U

21
00

0I
A

 G
en

er
at

or
1,

60
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
12

v 
ba

tte
ry

 m
ai

nt
ai

ne
r

10
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

To
ta

l c
os

t o
f t

ra
ile

r w
ith

 o
pt

io
ns

42
,8

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

36
,9

07
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
38

,9
07

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

In
cl

ud
es

 9
 c

yl
in

de
rs

In
cl

ud
es

 1
2 

cy
lin

de
rs

S
ta

r7
0 

D
el

ux
S

ta
r1

00
 D

el
ux



RESOLUTION NO. R-135-10 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A LOAN AGREEMENT 
WITH QUINT CREATIVE GROUP, LLC, IN THE AMOUNT OF $45,000 

WHEREAS, on August 5, 2009, the City of Piqua was a recipient of a $90,000 
grant from the United States Department of Agriculture’s Rural Business Enterprise 
Grant to establish a revolving loan fund for the purposes of increasing economic 
opportunities for industrial and commercial concerns within the City of Piqua; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Piqua has received an application for a loan from 
the revolving loan fund from Quint Creative Group, LLC; and  

WHEREAS, the application has been deemed to be complete and is 
recommended for approval by the City Commission; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that 

 SEC. 1:  The Finance Director is hereby authorized to draw her 
warrants from time to time on the appropriate account of the city treasury in payment 
according to the terms of the loan, an amount not exceeding a total of $45,000; 

 SEC. 2:  The City shall submit and execute all necessary 
documentation with Quint Creative Group, LLC and the United States Department of 
Agriculture to facilitate the execution of the loan agreement; 

 SEC. 3:  This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and 
after the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
       _________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 

ATTEST:   _______________________ 
 REBECCA J. COOL   
 CLERK OF COMMISSION 

 



 

 

CITY COMMISSION MEETING REPORT
 

 
For the Regular Meeting of        November 16, 2010 

 
 
 
      

TO:  Fred Enderle, City Manager 
 
FROM:    William Lutz, Development Program Manager 
  
SUBJECT: Approval of Loan Request from Quint Creative Group in the 

amount of $45,000  
 
        

PURPOSE:
 

The purpose of this resolution is to approve the request from Quint Creative Group in the 
amount of $45,000 from the city’s United States Department of Agriculture Economic 
Development Revolving Loan Fund.   

 
RECOMMENDATION:

 
City Staff recommends that the City Commission adopt the resolution approving the loan to 
Quint Creative Group in the amount of $45,000. 

      
BACKGROUND:

 
In 2009, the City of Piqua received a $90,000 grant from the Untied States Department 
of Agriculture, which provided initial funding for an Economic Development Revolving Loan 
Fund.  The funding provided by the United States Department of Agriculture allowed for a 
great deal of flexibility on the eligible activities that the funding could be used for and 
also had broad criteria which allowed the funding to be used for more businesses in the 
community.  The community has until February 2011 to expend the grant funds provided 
by the United States Department of Agriculture.   

 
ALTERNATIVES:

 
1. Adopt the resolution approving the Loan to Quint Creative Group. 
2. Do not adopt the resolution denying the loan.  

 
DISCUSSION:

 
  
 As previously stated, in 2009, the City of Piqua received a $90,000 grant from the United 

States Department of Agriculture.  The grant supports businesses that have fifty or fewer 
employees and gross revenues of less than $1,000,000.  The City has marketed the 
program through public access television programs, news releases, the city website and by 
mailing informational packets to local banks. 
 



The program received an application from Quint Creative Group, a business that was 
established in 2009, but was an outgrowth of Quint Custom Signs, a local business that has 
had a community presence for over ten years in the City of Piqua. 
 
The business has indicated that it needs funds through our program for the purchases of a 
Computer Numerically Control (CNC) Machine.  The machine will help the small business by 
performing more of their graphic arts production in house rather than needing to contract 
this work to other providers.    By 2013, the small business plans to have a payroll of 
approximately $70,000.  At current tax rates, this new payroll equates to roughly an 
additional of $1,225 of income tax revenue per year.   
 
After conducting a preliminary review of Quint Creative Group’s application package with 
the United States Department of Agriculture, it has been determined by City Staff that a 
loan package of $45,000 be offered to Quint Creative Group over a term of seven years 
at a 3% annual percentage rate.  The loan will be secured by having liens and financing 
statements on all equipment purchased by the loan funds. 
 
If City Commission decides not to adopt the resolution, Quint Creative Group would either 
have to rely on private sector support or Quint Creative Group may decide not to move 
forward with becoming established in the community. 
 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:

 
There is no negative financial impact to adopt the resolution.  The funds that are being used 
to support this loan are coming from grant-funded dollars that have already been 
committed for the city’s use by the United States Department of Agriculture.  Additionally, 
since this is a loan, the city will receive the payments from the loan directly.  The loan is 
expected to generate $4,946 in interest payments over the next seven years.  These 
dollars can be loaned out in the future by the community for businesses that meet the 
general criteria established by the United States Department of Agriculture.    In addition, 
the small business plans to have a payroll of approximately $70,000.  At current tax rates, 
this new payroll equates to roughly an additional of $1,225 of income tax revenue per 
year.     
 
COMMUNITY IMPACT:

 
The impact of this program will be focused primarily on those businesses that take 
advantage of the program.  The offering of incentives and programs to our business 
community provide the community with tools to help attract, retain and grow the businesses 
that are part of the community.  Programs such as the United States Department of 
Agriculture Revolving Loan Fund are such tools that accomplish of the goals of economic 
development within the community. 
 
CONFORMITY TO CITY PLANS & POLICIES:

 
This loan is in compliance with city plans and policies to provide for improved economic 
opportunities for the community and providing tangible support for the community’s existing 
businesses.   



RESOLUTION NO. R-136-10 
 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER 
TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH THE TRUSTEES 
OF WASHINGTON TOWNSHIP TO FURNISH EMERGENCY 
AMBULANCE SERVICE AND FIRE PROTECTION 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the Trustees of Washington Township have requested that the 
City of Piqua, Ohio, furnish emergency ambulance service and fire protection to the 
inhabitants of said Township; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Piqua agrees to provide fire and emergency 
ambulance service for a five (5) year period commencing with the date of execution 
of the attached agreement in substantially this form (Exhibit “A”), for which the 
Township agrees to pay pursuant to the attached schedule (Exhibit “A”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 505.44 of the Ohio Revised Code provides for the 
furnishing of said service; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 
 

SEC. 1: The City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to 
execute an agreement in substantially this form with the Trustees of Washington 
Township, Miami County, Ohio, for emergency ambulance service and fire protection 
to the inhabitants of said Township, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A”; 
 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



1 

   
  

 

CITY COMMISSION MEETING REPORT 
 

    For the Regular Meeting of November 16, 2010 

   
TO:  City Commission 
 
FROM: Fred Enderle, City Manager  
  
SUBJECT: Resolution R-136-10: authorization for City Manager to execute a fire and 

emergency ambulance service agreement with Washington Township.  
 
 
PURPOSE:   
Request for City Commission authorization to execute a new 5–year fire and emergency 
ambulance service agreement with Washington Township.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval of the Resolution to allow for continuation of fire and EMS service to Washington 
Township.   
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The City has provided fire and EMS service to the two adjoining Townships since 1973.  Our 
previous contract with Washington Township was a three (3) year contract running from 
March 1, 2007 to February 28, 2010. In January of 2010 the City and Township executed a 
contract extension to September 30, 2010 to provide additional time to negotiate new terms 
for a renewed contract.  
 
Because Springcreek Township required seeking a fire & EMS levy on the November 2, 2010 
ballot, and the two agreements have the same formula for calculating base fees, the 
Administration agreed to continue providing EMS and fire service under a memorandum of 
understanding through the balance of 2010.  
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
1) Approve the Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute the 5-year contract with 

Washington Township.      
2) Do not approve the Resolution and provide further direction. 
 
 
 
 



 Page 2 
 

DISCUSSION: 
Over time, the EMS and fire service agreements with Washington and Springcreek Townships 
have diminished in value to the City. The 2007 contract provided service to Washington 
Township at an annual fee of $60,260 and Springcreek at an annual fee of $59,775.  Given the 
percentage of total Piqua Fire Department runs to Washington Township (3.03%) and 
Springcreek Township (4.04%) the contract were inequitable to the City and Washington 
Township. While the average cost of a run to the City of Piqua was $1,162 the cost to 
Washington Township was $634 and Springcreek Township $474.   
 
The new contract is based on the average cost per run of the Piqua Fire Department of $1,094 
and a level of service that provides Washington Township the following: 

1. Emergency Ambulance Service at the same service level (and priority) as resident of 
the City of Piqua; and 

2. Fire service that provides a response of one piece of fire apparatus and two 
firefighters; and also provides that City of Piqua fire service calls will take precedence 
over Washington Township calls.  

 
Given that Washington Township will pay the same rate per run as the City, adjusted for the 
above-described level of service, the agreement is equitable to all.  
 
By straight calculation of the new formula Washington Township's new rate would be 
$85,332.  However, because the large difference from the 2007-2010 rate (about $25,000) the 
agreement provides annual rate adjustments to bring the Township up to the full rate in 
January 2014.  The contract also provides for a Township 5-year option for renewal at 3% 
annual adjustments. The annual rates are as follows: 
 

Initial 5 year Agreement Rate Adjustment Schedule: 

 Year Annual Rate 
increase from 
previous year 

 2010  $        62,068    
 2011  $        67,884   $        5,816  
 2012  $        73,700   $        5,816  
 2013  $        79,516   $        5,816  
 2014  $        85,332   $        5,816  
    
5 year  Option for renewal at 3% annual adjustment: 

 Year Annual Rate 
% increase from 

previous year 
 2015  $        87,892  3%
 2016  $        90,529  3%
 2017  $        93,245  3%
 2018  $        96,042  3%
 2019  $        98,923  3%
    

 
 



 Page 3 
 

 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
The financial impact to the City is total revenue of $368,500 over the initial five-year 
term of the agreement. The agreement is also more equitable for the City, based on both 
the City and Township paying the same cost per run $1,094.  
 
COMMUNITY IMPACT: 
Community impact will be occasions when a squad will be occupied with an EMS call outside 
the City, while the remaining squad is also on a call, it may necessitate calling in additional 
resources.  However, this situation exists now, and has for a number of years, under past 
agreements with the adjoining townships.    
   
CONFORMITY TO CITY PLANS & POLICIES: 
Fire and emergency ambulance service to the adjoining townships has been a planned 
budgeted activity of the City for over 37 years. It has been a long unwritten policy of the City 
to provide assistance to neighboring communities where the City is able to do so.  



FIRE AND EMERGENCY AMBULANCE SERVICE 
WASHINGTON TOWNSHIP 

 
 This Agreement is made and entered into this ____ day of November, 
2010, by and between the City of Piqua, acting by and through the City Manager 
(“City”) and Washington Township, by and through the Washington Township 
Trustees (“Washington Township”). 
 
 The City agrees to provide fire and emergency ambulance service 
described below for a period of five (5) years commencing with the date of 
execution of this agreement, for which the Township agrees to pay pursuant to 
the following schedule: 
 

I. Total payment of $62,068 for the contract year September 1, 2010 through 
December 31, 2011 are as follows: 
a. $20,690 Due September 1, 2010 and paid pursuant to the Memorandum of 

Understanding dated on August 31, 2010. 
 

II. Total payment of $67,884 for the contract year January 1, 2011 through 
December 31, 2011 are as follows: 
a. $33,942 Due on January 31, 2011. 
b. $33,942 Due on July  31, 2011 

 
III. Total payment of $73,700 for the contract year January 1, 2012 through 

December 31, 2012 are as follows: 
a. $36,850 Due on January 31, 2012. 
b. $36,850 Due on July  31, 2012 

 
IV. Total payment of $79,516 for the contract year January 1, 2013 through 

December 31, 2013 are as follows: 
a. $39,758 Due on January 31, 2014. 
b. $39,758 Due on July  31, 2014 

 
V. Total payment of $85,332 for the contract year January 1, 2014 through 

December 31, 2014 are as follows: 
a. $42,666 Due on January 31, 2014. 
b. $42,666 Dune on July  31, 2014. 

 
A.  Scope of Services 
 

The fire protection and emergency ambulance service, which the City shall 
provide in response to calls for emergency assistance shall consist of 
such equipment and personnel as in the Piqua Fire Chief, or his 
designee’s, discretion shall appear warranted, expect that the City shall 
respond to structure fires with no less than one piece of fire apparatus and 
two firefighters. It is expressly understood by the City and the Township 



that, notwithstanding any of the foregoing terms, fire calls within the City of 
Piqua shall take precedence and have priority over all fire calls within the 
Township. Said precedence and priority applies to the availability of fire 
apparatus and personnel.  Emergency ambulance service shall be 
handled in the City’s normal priority of emergency medical service calls. 
 
Nothing in this is agreement shall be construed or interpreted to deny the 
City any statutory exemption from liability for personal and/or property 
damage occurring during a response to, or actions taken at a call for 
emergency assistance in the Township, and it is expressly agreed by 
parties hereto, that the City shall not be liable for damages of whatever 
nature to the Township or any of its inhabitants for failure to respond to 
any call for emergency assistance, or for lack of speed in responding to 
any such call for any insufficiency of apparatus, inadequacy of operating 
apparatus, failure to extinguish any fire, or for any cause whatsoever in 
carrying out this Agreement.   

 
B. Option for Renewal  
 

The term of this Agreement shall be for five (5) years with an option for 
renewal by the Township, under the same terms for an additional five (5) 
years with 3% annual rate adjustments as follows: 

Year Annual Rate 
2015    $87,892   
2016    $90,529 
2017    $93,245 
2018    $96,042 
2019    $98,923 

 
C. Termination 

Either party may terminate this agreement, at the end of any contract year, 
by giving written notice to the other party at least six (6) months in 
advance of the end of any one contract year. 

 
D. EMS Billing 

The City shall administer and transfer all funds, net of fees and expenses, 
received from Med3000, or any other third party administrator contract for 
EMS billing, to Washington Township for billing within the Township within 
fifteen (15) days following month end. 

 
E. Entirety 

This Agreement, except as noted herein, shall govern and all verbal 
discussions, representations or promises concerning the terms of this 
Agreement shall be of no force and effect.  If there is any conflict between 
the terms of this Agreement and any of the other documents that are 
referred to herein, this Agreement governs. 



 
By entering into this Agreement, the parties do not intend to create any 
obligations express or implied other than those set out herein.  Further, 
this Agreement shall not create any rights in any party not a signatory 
hereto. 

 
F. Notice 

 
Any notice shall be served upon the following: 
 
City Manager     Washington Township Trustees 
City of Piqua     Township Building    
201 W. Water Street   520 S. College St. 
Piqua, OH  45356    PO Box 232 
      Piqua, OH 45356 

 
G. Amendments 

 
Any modification to this Agreement shall be in writing and mutually agreed 
to by both parties or shall have no effect. 

 
 



 
 
 
 The parties enter into this Agreement this _____ day of November  , 2010, 
as executed and witnessed in accordance with the below signatures. 
 
City of Piqua      Washington Township Trustees 
By:       By: 
 
 
 
_______________________________  __________________________ 
City Manager, Frederick E. Enderle  Trustee Ed McMaken 
 
Witness: 
 
 
_______________________________  __________________________ 
       Trustee Paul Holfinger 
 
 
       __________________________ 
       Trustee Jim Hiegel 
 
Approved as to Form:    Approved as to form: 
 
 
________________________________  __________________________ 
Stacy M. Wall, City Law Director   Counsel for Washington  
City of Piqua      Township Trustees 

 
 
 

 



RESOLUTION NO.  R-137-10 
 
 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE PURCHASE ORDER TO   
BARRETT PAVING MATERIALS, INC.  AS THE PRIMARY SUPPLIER, AND 

VALLEY ASPHALT CORPORATION AS THE SECONDARY SUPPLIER OF HOT 
MIX FOR THE 2010 STREET AND ALLEY MAINTENANCE PROGRAM 

 
 
 WHEREAS, by Resolution No. R-48-10 passed on April 6, 2010 this 
Commission awarded the original contract for the 2010 Street and Alley Maintenance 
Program; and;   
 
 WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the purchase order to Barrett Paving 
Materials, Inc. as the primary supplier, and Valley Asphalt Corporation as the 
secondary supplier of hot mix for the 2010 Street and Alley Maintenance Program. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 
 

SEC. 1: Change Order No. 1, which increases the original contract 
price of $80,000 by $35,000 (totaling $115,000) as additional payment to Barrett 
Paving Materials Inc. as the primary supplier, and/or Valley Asphalt Corporation as 
the secondary supplier of hot mix for the 2010 Street and Alley Maintenance 
Program is hereby approved. 

 
SEC. 2:  The Finance Director is hereby authorized to draw her warrant 

on the appropriate account of the City Treasury in payment according to this 
Resolution. 
  
 SEC. 3: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 







RESOLUTION NO. R-138-10 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER 
TO CONTRACT WITH THE MIAMI COUNTY PUBLIC 
                   DEFENDER COMMISSION 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City recognizes its responsibility to provide legal services to 
indigents charged with loss-of-liberty offenses under the Piqua Code; and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 
 

SEC. 1: The proposed contract by and between the City of Piqua and 
the Miami County Public Defender Commission commencing January 1, 2011 and 
shall terminate on December 31, 2011 is hereby approved;  
 
 SEC. 2: The Finance Director is hereby authorized and directed to 
draw three warrants on the appropriate account of the city treasury in the total 
amount of $20, 341.13 consisting of three installments according to Section 2 of said 
contract; 
 
 SEC. 3: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 









D.    OTHER BUSINESS 
             JULY 6, 2010 
 

 Monthly Reports for May 2010 
 Economic Development Update 

 
 
 




